
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Paul Bateman, Democratic Services Officer, 
Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422523

E-mail: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 9 April 2019

Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 17 APRIL 2019 AT 6.30 PM

THE RIDGEWAY, THE BEACON, PORTWAY, WANTAGE, OX12 9BY

Members of the Committee:
Sandy Lovatt (Chairman)
Janet Shelley (Vice-
Chairman)
Stuart Davenport
Robert Hall

Jenny Hannaby
Anthony Hayward
Bob Johnston

Ben Mabbett
Catherine Webber

Substitutes Councillors
Yvonne Constance
Margaret Crick
St John Dickson

Katie Finch
Chris Palmer
Helen Pighills

Julia Reynolds
Emily Smith
Reg Waite

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.



2

1. Chairman's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping 
matters.

2. Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

3. Minutes  (Pages 4 - 6)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meeting held on 13 March 2019.  

4. Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5. Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.  

6. Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.  

Planning applications

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.

Summary index of applications

Site Address Proposal Application No Page.



3

7. P18/V2884/FUL 
- Premier Inn, 
Section of 
A4130 between 
Milton 
Interchange and 
New Farm, 
Milton, OX14 
4TX  

Erection of a four-storey hotel annex 
and single storey extension to existing 
hotel entrance (Use Class C1), 
alterations to car parking layout, 
landscaping and associated works. 
(As amended by plans received 20 
February 2019).

7 - 30

8. P18/V2931/FUL 
- Land to the 
rear of 10 Halls 
Close, Drayton, 
OX14 4LU  

Removal of condition 14 (age 
restricted units) - on application ref. 
P15/V2077/O. Outline application on 
Land to the rear of 10 Halls Close, 
Drayton, to provide up to 28 no. 
dwellings with all matters reserved 
except access.

31 - 41

9. P18/V2930/HH - 
29 Montagu 
Road, Botley 
Oxford, OX2 
9AQ  

Demolish rear conservatory and 
garage, add additional 2nd storey to 
side extension, add rear single storey 
extension.

42 - 51

10. P18/V2756/FUL 
- Jigsaw, 
Coopers Lane, 
Wantage, OX12 
8HQ  

Proposed new dwelling, garage and 
partial demolition of the existing 
dwelling with that retained to be used 
as an outbuilding used for storage (As 
amended by plan received 18 
January 2019).

52 - 61

11. P18/V2738/FUL 
- Watchfield, 
Swindon, SN6  

Artistic trail throughout the village.  
(As amended by plans received on 21 
January 2019, 7 February 2019 and 
27 February 2019).

62 - 71

12. P19/V0258/HH - 
85 Netherton 
Road, Appleton, 
OX13 5LA  

Demolish ground rear extensions and 
erect new extended ground rear 
extension.

72 - 77

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 13 March 2019 Pl.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Planning Committee
held on Wednesday 13 March 2019 at 6.30 pm
in The Beacon, Portway, Wantage, OX12 9BY

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors , Janet Shelley (Vice-Chairman), Robert Hall, Jenny Hannaby, 
Anthony Hayward, Bob Johnston, Ben Mabbett and Helen Pighills (In place of Catherine 
Webber)

Officers: Emily Hamerton, Stuart Walker, Paul Bateman and Steve Culliford

Also present: Councillor Chris Palmer

Number of members of the public: 1

Pl.127 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman outlined the emergency evacuation arrangements and the procedure for the 
meeting.  

Pl.128 Apologies for absence 

Councillors Stuart Davenport, Sandy Lovatt and Catherine Webber had sent apologies for 
absence. 

Pl.129 Declarations of interest 

None

Pl.130 Urgent business 

The planning officer reported that applications P18/V2705/FUL and P18/V2706/LB – 10 
East St Helen Street, Abingdon - had been withdrawn from the agenda, following 
consultation with the Chairman, as Cllr Pighills had withdrawn her call-in request.

The planning officer reported that application P18/V2651/HH – 5 Park Crescent, Abingdon 
- had been withdrawn from the agenda as new information had been received requiring 
consideration and that re-advertisement was necessary.

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 13 March 2019 Pl.2

Pl.131 Public participation 

The list of registered public speakers was tabled at the meeting.

Pl.132 P19/V0018/FUL - Bellingers, 111 Ock Street, Abingdon, OX14 
5DQ 

The committee considered application P19/V0018/FUL. The application sought to vary 
planning conditions attached to planning permission P17/V0321/FUL for the 
redevelopment of the site to form 39 apartments for the elderly.  The application sought 
the variation of the wording of conditions 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 9, 10, 11 and 12 to allow the 
demolition of existing buildings within the site prior to submission and agreement of pre-
commencement details.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting.  

David Pope spoke, objecting to the application on behalf of Abingdon Town Council.  

Councillor Chris Palmer spoke in objection to the application as the local ward member.  

The committee had concerns about possible land contamination. The planning officer 
advised that the developers must fully comply with any environmental conditions. 

The committee emphasised the requirement for adequate traffic management of the site 
during any demolition and development. The planning officer informed the committee that 
a routing plan had been produced and that the Oxfordshire County Council, as highways 
authority, had requested that this was covered by condition. The traffic plan was complete, 
contained within a separate Discharge Condition Application and was in the public domain 
for consultation. He was of the view that although demolition altered timeframes, the 
demolition itself was not harmful and that any new issues would be considered in due 
course.

The committee was concerned that the Michaelmas and Runaway Fairs in October should 
not be adversely affected.  by work on the site. The planning officer advised that these 
issues would be dealt with under the road closure orders.  The committee asked that the 
applicant was advised to contact the town council over the impact of the fairs on Ock 
Street each October.  

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.  

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P19/V0018/FUL subject to:
1. The completion of a new S106 unilateral undertaking or deed of variation to the 

S106 unilateral undertaking on application P17/V0321/FUL; 
2. The conditions set out in Appendix 1 to the report; and 
3. An informative to advise the applicant to contact Abingdon Town Council regarding 

the Michaelmas and Runaway Fairs in October each year.  

The meeting closed at 7.06pm

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 13 March 2019 Pl.3

Pl.133 P18/V2705/FUL and P18/V2706/LB - 10 East St Helen Street, 
Abingdon, OX14 5EA 

The planning officer reported that applications P18/V2705/FUL and P18/V2706/LB – 10 
East St Helen Street, Abingdon - had been withdrawn from the agenda, following 
consultation with the Chairman, as Cllr Pighills had withdrawn her call-in request.

Pl.134 P18/V2651/HH - 5 Park Crescent Abingdon, OX14 1DF 

The planning officer reported that application P18/V2651/HH – 5 Park Crescent, Abingdon 
- had been withdrawn from the agenda as new information had been received requiring 
consideration and that re-advertisement was necessary.

The meeting closed at 7.07 pm

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V2884/FUL
SITE

PARISH
PROPOSAL

Premier Inn Section Of A4130 Between 
Milton Interchange And New Farm Milton 
Abingdon, OX14 4TX
MILTON
Erection of a four-storey hotel annex and 
single storey extension to existing hotel 
entrance (Use Class C1), alterations to 
car parking layout, landscaping and 
associated works. (As amended by plans 
received 20 February 2019)

WARD MEMBER(S) Stuart Davenport
APPLICANT Whitbread Group Plc
OFFICER Charlotte Brewerton

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that planning committee resolves to grant planning 
permission with the decision to issue the permission delegated to the Head of 
Planning subject to a s106 agreement being entered into to secure financial 
contributions and subject to the following conditions: 

1 Time Limit

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not 
later than 3 years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: By virtue of Sections 91 to 95 of the Town & Country Planning 
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004.

2 Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: CHQ.15.11432_PL105, PL101, PL103 
1 of 2, PL103 2 of 2, PL104, PL106 1 of 2, PL106 2 of 2, PL107, PL108

Reason: To secure the proper planning of the area in accordance with 
Development Plan Policies. 

3 Car parking

Prior to the use or occupation of the new development, the car parking 
spaces shown on approved drawing number CHQ.15.11432_PL105 shall 
be constructed, surfaced and marked out. The parking spaces shall be 
constructed to prevent surface water discharging onto the highway. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2884/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

Thereafter, the parking spaces shall be kept permanently free of any 
obstruction to such use. 

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to avoid localised flooding
(Policies DC5 and of the adopted Local Plan 2011)

4 Construction Traffic Management Plan

Prior to the commencement of any development (including demolition 
works), a Construction Method Statement shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
Statement shall be complied with throughout the construction period, 
and shall provide details of the following:

1. vehicle parking facilities for construction workers, other site
    operatives and visitors;
2. site offices and other temporary buildings;
3. loading and unloading of plant and materials;
4. storage of plant and materials used during construction;
5. vehicle wheel washing facilities;
8. installation and maintenance of security hoarding/fencing.

Reason: In the interest of Highway Safety and to protect the amenities of 
adjacent business during construction (Policies DC5 and DC9 of the 
adopted Local Plan 2011)

5 Landscaping details – Hard and soft

Prior to development above slab level, details of both hard and soft 
landscape works shall have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. These details shall include: 

i) Earthworks showing existing and proposed finished levels or 
contours;

ii) Hard surfacing materials;
iii) Schedules of trees and shrubs to be planted (noting species, 

plant sizes and number/densities)
iv) Means of enclosure and retaining structures;
v) Boundary treatments, including the retention of any existing 

boundary treatments; 

All the approved hard and soft landscaping works and boundary 
treatments shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
before any part of the development is first occupied. Thereafter, the 
landscaped areas shall be maintained for a period of 5 years. Any trees 
or shrubs which die or become replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar 
size and species to those originally planted. 

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

Reason: To ensure that the implementation of appropriate landscaping 
which will improve the environmental quality of the development 
(Policies CP44 and DC6 of the adopted Local Plans).

6 Tree Protection

Prior to the commencement of any site works (including demolition or 
site clearance) a protected area shall be designated for all existing trees 
which are shown to be retained, and the trees shall be protected in 
accordance with a scheme which complies with the current edition of 
BS 5837: "Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction" that 
shall first have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority.  The agreed measures shall be kept in place during 
the entire course of development.

Reason: To protect trees on the site in the interest of visual amenity 
(Policy DC6 of the adopted Local Plan 2011).

7 Drainage Details (Surface Water)

A sustainable drainage scheme based on sustainable drainage 
principles
and an assessment of the hydrological and hydro-geological context of 
the development should be submitted and approved prior to 
development commencing. This should be based on the approved 
strategy within Flood Risk Assessment and SUDS Strategy report 
reference WE/18058 prepared by GDP. The approved scheme shall be 
implemented prior to the first occupation of the hotel annexe hereby 
permitted.

Reason: To ensure effective drainage of the site and to avoid flooding 
(Policy CP42 of the adopted Plan 2031 Part 1)

8 Drainage Details (foul Water) 

Prior to commencement of the development, a foul water strategy must 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority 
which demonstrates that the peak discharge to the wastewater network 
from the hotel complex and proposed development would be no greater 
than existing.  The approved strategy must be implemented prior to the 
first use of the hotel annexe hereby permitted.

Reason: To ensure effective drainage of the site in the interest of public 
health (policies CP42 and DC9 of the adopted Local Plans)

9 Contamination 

Prior to the commencement of the development a phased risk 
assessment shall be carried out by a competent person in accordance 
with current government and Environment Agency Guidance and 

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

Approved Codes of Practice. Each phase shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Phase 2 shall include a comprehensive intrusive investigation in order 
to characterise the type, nature and extent of contamination present, the 
risks to receptors and if significant contamination is identified to inform 
the remediation strategy.

Phase 3 requires that a remediation strategy be submitted to and 
approved by the LPA to ensure the site will be rendered suitable for its 
proposed use.

Reason: To ensure that any ground, water and associated gas 
contamination is identified and adequately addressed to ensure the 
safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is 
suitable for the proposed use (Policies DC10 and DC12 of the adopted 
plan 2011).

10 Contaminated Land - Linked Conditions (2)

The development shall not be occupied until any previously approved
remediation strategy has been carried out in full and a validation report
confirming completion of these works has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that any ground, water and associated gas 
contamination is identified and adequately addressed to ensure the 
safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is 
suitable for the proposed use (Policies DC10 and DC12 of the adopted 
plan 2011).

1.0 INTRODUCTION & PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is presented to planning committee as Milton Parish Council 

object to the amended plans. 

1.2

1.3

1.4

The hotel site is located on the Milton Interchange services at the major 
roundabout junction of the A34 and A4130. The site lies approximately 3 miles 
west of Didcot centre. Milton Park, is located to the north of the site beyond the 
A4130.

The site is accessed off the A4130 close to the A34 roundabout. The highway 
access into the site is shared with a petrol filing station and drive thru’ 
restaurant. A pedestrian footpath and crossing over the A4130 links the site 
with Milton Park to the north. The site is not located within a Conservation Area 
nor is it near to any listed buildings. 

The site area is 1.39 ha (3.43 acres). This is comprised of the existing hotel 
and restaurant site which amount to some 1.16 Ha (2.86 acres) of the 

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

1.5

application site. The remaining site area is vacant land to the east which is to 
be acquired for the project. 

Officers are aware of an application to the rear of this site (P19/V0008/RM) on 
adjoining land and seeking permission for the development of roadside 
services to include new restaurant facilities and takeaway premises, hotel and 
retail facilities and parking arrangements. 

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

This application subject to this report seeks permission for a 4-storey building 
hotel annexe. The proposal would be located to the rear of the site, would not 
be attached to the existing hotel facilities but a standalone element that would 
measure some 12.25m to eaves with a flat roof. 

The hotel is to be increased by 80 bedrooms. The total number of bedrooms on 
the site would increase from 135 to 215. The proposals will provide 2,452 sq. m 
of gross internal floor area. The existing hotel is 7,054 sq. m. The gross external 
floor area will increase by 2,643sq. m. These areas include the small single 
storey extension to the existing hotel entrance lobby.

A revised site layout drawing (ref CHQ.1511432-PL 105A) was formally 
submitted on 20 February 2019 to resolve comments made by the Forestry 
Officer, with regards to the loss of a group of trees, and to accommodate electric 
charging points as noted by the Air Quality comments. 

The changes to the scheme include a loss of 5 proposed parking spaces to 
keep tree group G2. The Highways Officer is agreeable to this change. 
However, an objection was later received from the Parish Council with regards 
to the scale of the proposal in relation to the existing facilities. Officers note that 
this was not raised in their original submissions (No objections) and the size of 
the proposals have not changed as part of the revised plans. 

The car park on site currently provides 166 car parking spaces; 156 spaces 
including 10 disabled spaces. The proposal increases parking to 200 in total, 
186 of which 14 spaces will be provided for disabled users. Cycle parking is 
provided on the site for 10 guest and staff spaces. These will be retained within 
the proposals. Proposed plans and the revised site layout are attached at 
Appendix 1. 

1.11 A location plan showing the site in its local context is provided below:

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 A summary of the responses received to the application are included in the table 

below:

Milton Parish Council No Objection – 16/01/2019

Amended Plans 
Object to scale in relation to existing hotel 
facilities.  

Oxfordshire County Council Highways – No objection subject to conditions 
and legal agreement to secure contributions:
Public Transport Infrastructure = £49,970.63
Travel Plan Monitoring = £2,040

Archaeology – No Objection

Amended Plans 
Highways – No Objection 
Content to accept the loss of 5 car parking 
spaces - do not consider such a loss of spaces 
sufficient enough to justify an objection on 
highway safety grounds.

Economic Development No comments received 

Didcot Garden Town Team No comments received 

Urban Design Officer  No comments received

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

Landscape Architect  No Objection 
Hard and soft landscaping condition required.

Amended Plans
No Objection 

Forestry Team  Objection – loss of trees harmful to character 
and surrounding area. 

Amended Plans 
No Objection - Now that the scheme 
accommodates the group of Birch (G5) and 
enables the central group of trees (G2) to be 
retained - satisfied that there are no further 
arboricultural issues outstanding.

Countryside Officer) No Objection

Drainage engineer No Objection subject to conditions for details 
of Surface Water Drainage and Foul Drainage. 

Thames Water Surface Water Drainage – No objection 

Foul Water Drainage - Following initial 
investigations, Thames Water has identified an 
inability of the existing foul water network 
infrastructure to accommodate the needs of 
this development proposal. Recommend a 
condition for foul water details to be approved.

Air Quality No Objection – however notes there are no 
electric charging points in the car parking 
upgrades. This should be considered for future 
parking provisions.

Amended plans 
No Objection - Welcome the addition of 
electric charging points.

Contaminated Land No Objection subject to condition for phased 
investigation. 

Enterprise Zone Team No comments received. 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P08/V1941 - Refused (28/05/2009)

Erection of a two storey extension to provide additional hotel accommodation 
and a single storey restaurant extension.

Page 13

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P08/V1941


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

P03/V0380 - Approved (02/05/2003)
Single storey front extension to restaurant. Two storey bedroom extension and 
alterations to car park.

P96/V1149 - Approved (27/11/1996)
20 bedroom extension to existing hotel.

P94/V0048 - Approved (23/02/1995)
Erection of a 40 bedroom hotel. Alterations and extension to existing restaurant. 
(Application A).

P94/V0049 - Approved (23/02/1995)
Erection of a 40 bedroom hotel. Alterations and extension to existing restaurant. 
(Application B).

4.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 The main planning considerations in the determination of this application are: 
1. The principle of development
2. Impacts upon the character of the surrounding area
3. Impacts upon traffic generation and highway safety
4. Other material considerations

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Paragraph 31 of the NPPF confirms support for the development of “roadside 
facilities for motorists… where the primary function should be…to support the 
safety and welfare of the road user.” Paragraph 80 of the NPPF encourages 
LPAs to help create the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and 
adapt and calls for significant weight to be ‘placed on the need to support 
economic growth and productivity, considering both local business needs and 
wider opportunities for development.

Core Policy 31 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 (LPP1), supports new 
development in the visitor economy, including hotels and guest houses at 
service areas on the main transport corridors such as this. The Policy advises 
that development should be of an appropriate scale and character in relation to 
the location.

The site is located within the A34 Service Areas designation at Milton Heights 
as shown on the LPP1 proposals map. This is subject to Saved Policy TR10 of 
the Local Plan 2011 “Lorries and Roadside Facilities” which allocates the site for 
additional service facilities to meet the needs of the A34 corridor within the Vale. 
The Policy sub-text notes that ‘It is essential for development of the site to be 
designed and landscaped to the highest standard.’

Whilst comments from the Economic Team have not been received on this 
application their comments towards the pre-application discussions were 
detailed offering the following advice:

‘A 2014 Hotel Needs Assessment of the district recognises the demand for 
additional hotel rooms and for existing hotels to be upgraded and expanded. 

Page 14

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P03/V0380
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P96/V1149
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P94/V0048
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P94/V0049


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.6

The report highlights that demand for accommodation is strongest in the 
Science Vale/Milton Park area as South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse 
has one of the largest clusters of science-based research and knowledge 
industries in Western Europe, based around Milton Park, Harwell Oxford, 
Culham Science Park, Grove Technology Park, and Didcot. For this reason, the 
report notes the “need for a significant increase in hotel supply in the Science 
Vale area through new hotel openings and the expansion of existing hotels.

Proposals at Milton Park, Harwell Oxford and Didcot Gateway would only meet 
part of this need over the long term. Budget, upper tier budget and 3 star offers 
appear most likely to be deliverable, plus serviced apartments”. As such, the 
proposed four-storey annex and development of 80 new bedrooms is 
welcomed, particularly given the recent announcement of expansions at Harwell 
Campus (Rosalind Franklin Institute and the new headquarters of the Faraday 
Institute) and the anticipated increase demand for accommodation by visiting 
scientists. For the reasons outlined above. I would support a proposal to build a 
four-storey annex to the Premier Inn hotel at Milton to provide an additional 80 
guest bedrooms.’

Officers consider that the expansion of the hotel facilities accords with CP31 of 
LPP1 and saved policy TR10 of the Local Plan 2011 and the NPPF. The 
principle of development on this site is therefore acceptable and in accordance 
with the growth patterns for the district unless there are material considerations 
that go against the development. These impacts are assessed below. 

Impact upon the character of the surrounding area
4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built 
environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development and the 
creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning 
and development process should achieve.

As noted in saved policy T10 above whilst the principle of development on this 
site is supported there is a requirement for it to be visually connected to its site 
and surroundings including comprehensive landscaping of the site to ensure 
that development is of a high quality. 

The Urban Design Officer has not provided any comments on this formal 
submission but did provide comments throughout the pre-application 
discussions. These discussions resulted in an amended site layout as part of 
the planning application submission. In response to pre-application advice the 
submitted scheme includes the location of the proposed extension set back to 
the rear of the site to ‘frame’ the existing facilities and its design upgraded to a 
modern design narrative. 

Whilst the proposed height remains at 4 storeys tall its revised location against 
the backdrop of surrounding development and its modern design, which does 
include a flat roof but a modern palette of materials, would ensure that it sits 
comfortably within the surrounding site and is not visually intrusive in the wider 
context.

Page 15



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

Design principle DG51: of the Design Guide, expects new development to 
generally reflect the scale of the existing new development should adopt a 
simple form with a rectangular floorplan (DG:52) with buildings within rural and 
lower density areas within the Vale simply integrated into their setting (DG76). 

The Parish Council have concerns that the scale is not reflective of the existing 
facilities, these being a 2 storey 1990’s design with limited features of merit. 
Officers, however, consider that the simple form approach to increasing the 
number of bedrooms on this site within an area with an identified need for 
additional hotel facilities, within a site that has a service provision, and against 
the backdrop of surrounding development of a similar form and scale is 
acceptable. 

Surrounding built form is of a similar narrative, of simple rectangular form and 
does not overwhelm or dominate the skyline. The location of the buildings, 
pushed back within its plot would not compete with the main building, which 
houses the reception and restaurant, but rather reads as an extension to its 
facilities at the back of the site. 

The proposed single storey extension would have little bearing upon the existing 
character. Officers consider that the proposals would sit comfortably within its 
context without causing visual harm to the character of the site and surrounding 
area. 

For these reasons, the design details are in accordance with CP37 of LPP1 and 
the Design Guide 2015.

Landscaping 
Whilst the Landscape Architect had few concerns with the landscaping 
proposals the Forestry Officer was concerned with the loss of a group of trees 
(silver birch) within the revised parking facilities. These trees are considered to 
provide ‘a visual depth of tree canopy across the parking area. Whilst the 
individual trees are not outstanding examples of their species type, they are of 
satisfactory form and health and would otherwise offer a lengthy safe useful life 
expectancy. visual maturity to the site and their health and longevity would 
soften the development into its surroundings…..The loss of these trees would 
be detrimental to the character of the area and diminish the contribution that the 
trees make to the northern edge.’ 

A revised site location plan was submitted to ensure that these trees are 
retained. This results in the loss of 5 parking spaces. The Forestry Officer is 
agreeable to these details. 

To the west of the hotel, the Landscape Officer notes that ‘planting will be 
required rather than just grass to soften the built form of the hotel.’  A condition 
should be imposed requiring the submission of a detailed hard and soft 
landscaping scheme as no details of the landscaping details have been 
supplied. This condition will ensure the scheme is compliant with CP46 of the 
LPP1 and officers consider such landscaping will ensure the site is of a high-
quality development as required in the NPPF. 

Page 16



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

Impacts upon traffic generation and highway safety
The NPPF states that ‘Development should only be prevented or refused on 
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, 
or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.’

No alterations to the existing vehicular access that serves the site are proposed. 
A Transport Statement (TS) report and Travel Plan (TP) have been submitted.
 
The traffic movements that are generated by the existing 135-bedroom hotel 
and restaurant have been assessed from the survey data collected. It is
estimated that 39 two-way AM peak hour and 56 two-way PM peak hour 
movements are generated by these facilities. With the additional 80 new 
bedrooms, it is estimated that these peak hour traffic movements will increase to 
60 in the AM and 73 in the PM peaks i.e.an increase of 21 and 17 two-ways 
movements respectively. The increases in traffic movements are not considered 
to be significant enough to generate an objection on highway network operation 
grounds. The design of the existing vehicular access arrangements remains 
suitable to serve the additional traffic movements associated with this 
development proposal.

There is no technical objection to the changes in traffic movements from this 
site. The NPPF advises that refusal should only occur where there would be 
severe traffic implications arising from development. This cannot be 
demonstrated. 

Parking 
Paragraph 4.6 of the TS confirms that an on-site parking demand survey was 
undertaken between 30/09/2017 and 06/10/2017. The results of this survey 
established that the usage of the existing on site parking arrangements was only 
at 67% over this period, meaning there is existing parking capacity within the 
site.

During negotiations some concern arose over the loss of trees to accommodate 
parking provision with an increase from 166 parking spaces to 205. However, 
the revised site layout, to accommodate the existing trees on site, has reduced 
the parking capacity by 5, the revised parking on site will be 200 spaces, 186 
spaces with 14 being for disabled users. 

The Highways Officer is in agreement with this due to the existing facilities only 
being at 67% capacity. 

There are 10 existing cycle parking spaces on site, this is not going to change in 
the proposals. To encourage cycling to / from the site additional cycle parking 
facilities should be provided, notes the Highways Officer, however on discussing 
this with the agent the existing spaces are mainly for staff rather than visitors 
and this storage area is already covered, as shown on plan CHQ.1511432-PL 
105A. Officers therefore consider that an additional condition to cover this point 
is not required.

Page 17



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.27 Officers are satisfied that the traffic generation and parking arrangements at this 
site accord with policies CP33 & CP35 of LPP1.

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

Other material considerations
Officers are aware that there is an extant planning resolution to grant permission 
for additional service facilities to the rear of this site, P15/V2899/O by 
Minscombe properties. This application is still awaiting a s106 completion prior 
to the decision being issued. 

The current application seeks development on part of this Minscombe site 
however Officers understand that the land for this proposal is to be acquired 
should planning approval be granted. This is a matter for the owners of both 
sites, rather than a planning consideration.

A planning application for additional roadside services is also currently under 
assessment on land adjacent to the Minscombe site, P19/V0008/RM and north 
of the application site.  A new hotel standing at 3 storeys tall is proposed and 
located to the rear of this site. 

Officers have considered the impact from this proposal should it receive support 
and consider that there would be no undue harm to amenity and future users of 
the proposed developments. 

A footpath would connect both premises and Officers consider there would be 
natural surveillance of this footpath from both hotel facilities whilst also providing 
additional landscaping and accessibility between the sites to ensure 
connectivity. 

This is in accordance with Policies CP31, CP33, CP40 of LPP1 and TR10 & 
DC9 of Vale of White Horse Local Plan (saved Policies) 2011. 

Flood Risk 
The site is located within Flood Zone 1 – that at lowest risk of fluvial flooding 
and suitable for development. The drainage Officers at Vale and OCC have 
assessed the details for surface water drainage and ‘confirms a strategy 
incorporating permeable paving and surface water storage crates beneath one 
of the car parks. Infiltration is not considered suitable as a means of drainage 
and the proposal involves a connection to the existing drainage system with 
discharge restricted to greenfield run-off rates. The strategy provided is 
considered acceptable and further detailed design information should be 
submitted and approved prior to development commencing.’ This can be 
achieved via condition. 

The Flood Risk Assessment confirms that foul drainage would be discharged to 
an existing on-site pumping station before being pumped to Thames Water 
infrastructure.
Thames Water has concerns that the existing capacity is not capable of 
accommodating this additional foul drainage and have suggested a phased 
condition. Following discussion with Thames Water an appropriate condition is 

Page 18



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

4.42

recommended. Details with regards to drainage on this site are in accordance 
with Core Policy 42 of the LPP1. 

Contaminated land 
The Preliminary Risk Assessment report provided indicates a low risk to human
health from contamination on site and a low to moderate risk from ground gas.
The report subsequently recommends that an intrusive investigation should be
undertaken to confirm the levels of ground contamination on site prior to 
development. This can be undertaken via pre-commencement condition and 
has been included in the list at the end of this report. Contamination risk is in 
accordance with Core Policy 43 of the LPP1. 

Air Quality
The Environmental Team have assessed the application and consider the 
proposals to accord with emerging Core Policy DP26. They have commented on 
the need to future proof the site and include electric charging points for cars. 
The revised site plan CHQ.1511432-PL 105A has included 2 spaces for this 
future need. This is acceptable and in accordance with planning policies.  

Biodiversity
The site is not protected for biodiversity interest and there are no concerns over 
the loss of biodiversity on this site in accordance with Core Policy 46 of LPP1. 

Financial Contributions
Core Policy7 of LPP1 requires all new development to provide for the necessary 
on-site and where appropriate off-site infrastructure requirements arising from 
the proposal. Infrastructure requirements will be delivered directly by the 
developer and/or through an appropriate financial contribution.

The table below shows the contributions OCC highways Officer has asked for to 
encourage more sustainable modes of travel and seek to reduce reliance of the 
private motor car for travel::

These financial contributions help fund improved access to public transport 
along the A4130 corridor. Such infrastructure is expected to include Real Time
Information (RTI) displays, flags, poles and shelters. Bus stops in this location 
will encourage public transport use and provide a bus service closer to the 
development site for existing and future employees / visitors. 

A signalised crossing point is provided across the A4130, approximately 60 
metres away to the east of the site. This facility enables pedestrians and cyclists 
to cross the A4130 carriageway towards Milton Park via Park Drive for onward 
journeys. Such pedestrian and cyclist infrastructure are considered acceptable 
to serve the development site.  

Page 19



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.44 Officers consider these contributions reasonable and necessary to improve 
infrastructure within this area and are in accordance with CP7 pf the LPP1. 

5.0 CONCLUSION
5.1

5.2

5.3

Officers consider that the principle of development is acceptable according with, 
CP31 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan Part 1 and TR10 of Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2011. Additional roadside facilities on this site have an 
identified need within the Local plan to assist with the economic development 
and growth for the district. The proposal is considered to accord with material 
considerations without there being any undue harm on the character of the 
surrounding area, traffic movements, flood risk, biodiversity, air quality or 
contamination. 

Officers therefore consider this proposal can be recommended for approval 
subject to the completion of a S106 for the contributions to highway 
infrastructure. 

The following planning policies have been taken into account:

5.4

5.5

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 Policies (VOWH LPP1):
CP1: Presumption in Favour of sustainable development 
CP3: Settlement Hierarchy
CP7: Providing supporting infrastructure and services
CP15: Spatial Strategy for South East Vale sub area
CP17: Delivery of Strategic Highways improvements within South East Vale sub 
area. 
CP31: Development to support the visitor economy
CP33: Promoting sustainable transport and accessibility
CP35: Promoting public transport, cycling and walking
CP37: Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP38: Design Strategies for strategic and major development sites
CP40: Sustainable design and construction
CP42: Flood Risk
CP43: Natural Resources
CP44: Landscape
CP45: Green Infrastructure
CP46: Conservation and improvement of Biodiversity
CP47: Delivery and contingency

Saved Policies of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 (LP 2011):
DC1 – Design
DC3 – Design against crime
DC5 – Access
DC6 – Landscaping
DC7 – Waste collection and recycling
DC9 – The impact of development on neighbouring uses
DC10 – Effect of neighbouring or previous uses on development
DC12 – Water quality and resources
HE10 – Archaeology
TR10 – Identified for additional service facilities at Milton Heights

Page 20



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

5.6 Emerging Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2
A publication draft of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 has been 
subject to Examination and Main Modifications have been subject to public 
consultation.  Its policies are a material consideration although full weight 
cannot be given to them at present. The following policies are material to the 
consideration of this application:

DP2 - Space Standards
DP8 - Community Services and Facilities
DP16 - Access
DP17 - Transport Assessments and Travel Plans
DP21 - External Lighting
DP23 - Impact of Development on Amenity
DP24 - Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Developments
DP25 - Noise Pollution
DP26 - Air Quality
DP27 - Land Affected by Contamination
DP28 - Waste Collection and Recycling

5.7

5.8

Neighbourhood plan
Milton Parish has no Neighbourhood Development Plan

Adopted Guidance
Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD – March 2015

           Developer Contributions SPD – June 2017

5.9        Other Relevant Legislation and Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance
Community & Infrastructure Levy Legislation
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Obligations under Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010
Provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998
Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006 
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010
Localism Act (including New Homes Bonus)

Author:          Charlotte Brewerton
Contact No:   01235 422600
Email:            planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Page 21



HOTEL (PREMIER INN) BEEFEATER (APPLECART)LOBBY

0m 5m

0m 5m 10m

ã

â

November 2018

Existing Elevations

All drawings are subject to full site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site.

OXFORD SOUTH (DIDCOT)

CNC

MRA

CHQ.15.11432-PL104

1:100@A1

Existing South Elevation

Existing East Elevation

Existing North Elevation

EXISTING HOTEL

Bedrooms
135

No. of Storeys

2

Premier Inn

Milton Interchange

Milton, Nr Didcot, Oxon

OX14 4TX

CHQ Architects Ltd.

The Maltings, 44 Whitehorse Street,

Baldock, Hertfordshire SG7 6QQ

Telephone: (01462) 895110

Email: design@chq-architects.co.uk

           www.chq-architects.co.uk

ARCHITECTS

PLANNING

Appendix 1

P
age 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
63.005

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
65.747

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
68.179

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
63.005

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
65.747

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
68.179

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Ordnance Survey  information ã Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392 Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
INITIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
SCALE



0m 5m

0m 5m 10m

S
i
t
e
 
B

o
u
n
d
a
r
y

T
i
m

b
e
r
 
E
n
c
l
o
s
u
r
e
 
t
o

P
l
a
n
t
 
C
o
m

p
o
u
n
d

P
l
a
n
t
 
R
o
o
m

P
o
s
s
i
b
l
e

S
i
g
n
a
g
e
 
Z
o
n
e

2
m

 
h
i
g
h
 
c
l
o
s
e
 
b
o
a
r
d
e
d
 
f
e
n
c
e

S
i
t
e
 
B

o
u
n
d
a
r
y

Render Colour - Light cream 

Windows: UPVC frame, colour - brown

Doors: Painted timber

colour - brown to match existing

Facing brickwork

Powder coated eaves trim

Materials:

Masonry Facing Block

Colour : light grey 

Window panel

P
o
s
s
i
b
l
e

S
i
g
n
a
g
e
 
Z
o
n
e

P
o
s
s
i
b
l
e

S
i
g
n
a
g
e
 
Z
o
n
e

Welcome to

Premier Inn

S
i
t
e

 
B

o
u

n
d

a
r
y

North Elevation

South Elevation

E
a
s
t
 
E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

W
e
s
t
 
E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

ã
â

November 2018

All drawings are subject to full site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site.

PLANNING

1:200@A2

MRA

CHQ Architects Ltd.

The Maltings, 44 Whitehorse Street,

Baldock, Hertfordshire SG7 6QQ

Telephone: (01462) 895110

Email: design@chq-architects.co.uk

           www.chq-architects.co.uk

NORTH

HOTEL

Bedrooms

No. of Storeys

2

SITE AREA

PROPOSEDEXISTING

INCREASE /

DECREASE

ARCHITECTS

Proposed Elevations

OXFORD SOUTH (DIDCOT)

1.39 Ha

135

4

215

+2

+80

Premier Inn

Milton Interchange

Milton, Nr Didcot, Oxon

OX14 4TX

CHQ.15.11432-PL107

OXFORD SOUTH (DIDCOT)

Key Plan - NTS

Proposed West Elevation

Proposed East Elevation

Proposed North Elevation

NORTH

Proposed South Elevation

P
age 23

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Ordnance Survey  information.  Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
INITIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
SCALE



0m 5m 10m 15m 20m

SVP

SVP

SVP

SVP

Floor

gully

SVPSVPSVPSVPSVPSVP

SVP

SVPSVPSVP

SVP SVP

SVP

SVP SVP SVP SVP SVP SVP SVPSVPSVP

RWP RWP RWP RWP

RWP RWP RWP RWP

RWP

RWP

B E D R O O M B E D R O O M U A   B E D R O O M B E D R O O M B E D R O O M

B E D R O O M B E D R O O M B E D R O O M B E D R O O M B E D R O O MU A   B E D R O O M

B E D R O O M B E D R O O M B E D R O O M U A   B E D R O O M B E D R O O M B E D R O O M

B E D R O O M B E D R O O M B E D R O O M B E D R O O M B E D R O O MB E D R O O M

B E D R O O M

B E D R O O M

P L A N T

ESCAPE

STAIR

L I N E N

FFL 63.21

RESTAURANT

EXTENSION

Fire ExitFire Exit

ã

â

Novmber 2018

Existing Floor Plans

Sheet 1 of 2

All drawings are subject to full site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site.

CNC

CHQ.15.11432-PL103

1:200@A1

EXISTING HOTEL

Bedrooms
135

No. of Storeys

2

Existing Ground Floor Plan

Premier Inn

Milton Interchange

Milton, Nr Didcot, Oxon

OX14 4TX

OXFORD SOUTH (DIDCOT)

CHQ Architects Ltd.

The Maltings, 44 Whitehorse Street,

Baldock, Hertfordshire SG7 6QQ

Telephone: (01462) 895110

Email: design@chq-architects.co.uk

           www.chq-architects.co.uk

ARCHITECTS

PLANNING

P
age 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
PH BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
UA BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
UA BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
PH BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
PH BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
UA BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
RECEPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
PLANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
duct

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
FOYER

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
UA BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
MAIN LINEN INTAKE- WITH HOIST

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
EXISTING LINEN/CLEANERS RETAINED

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
MAIN STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
A/C

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
 SERVERY

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
WASH UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
FOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
FAMILY DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
FEMALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
PH WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
MALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
FREEZER

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
CHILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
DRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
W & S

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
BAR STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
BOTTLE STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
BEER STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
PLANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
STAFF ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
TODDLERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
STAFF BEDSIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
Ramp up

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
FREEZER

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
STAFF BEDSIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Belfast  sink

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
MALE  STAFF

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
FEMALE  STAFF

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
SHR 

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
CLNR / LNDRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
MALE  STAFF

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
FEMALE  STAFF

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
SHR 

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
Belfast  sink

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
INTERIOR FIT OUT BY OTHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
Vending

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
UA  WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
Ordnance Survey  information ã Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392 Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
INITIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
SCALE



0m 5m 10m 15m 20m

SVP

SVP

SVPSVPSVPSVPSVPSVPSVPSVPSVPSVP

SVP SVP SVP SVP SVP SVP SVP SVP SVPSVPSVP

RWP RWP RWP RWP

RWP RWP RWP RWP

RWP

Stub

stack

SVP

SVP

SVP

RWP

RWP

ã

â

November 2018

Existing Floor Plans

Sheet 2 of 2

All drawings are subject to full site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site.

OXFORD SOUTH (DIDCOT)

CNC

CHQ.15.11432-PL103

1:200@A1

EXISTING HOTEL

Bedrooms
135

No. of Storeys

2

Existing First Floor Plan

Premier Inn

Milton Interchange

Milton, Nr Didcot, Oxon

OX14 4TX

CHQ Architects Ltd.

The Maltings, 44 Whitehorse Street,

Baldock, Hertfordshire SG7 6QQ

Telephone: (01462) 895110

Email: design@chq-architects.co.uk

           www.chq-architects.co.uk

ARCHITECTS

PLANNING

P
age 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
 BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
duct

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
Maintenance  Cupboard 

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
LINEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
PLANT ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
PH BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
MAIN STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
LINEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
LINEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
ARCHIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Ordnance Survey  information ã Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392 Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
INITIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
SCALE



0m 5m 10m

Ground Floor Plan

s

AR

FIRE EXIT

FIRE EXIT

U
P

LOBBY

LINEN HUB

L
I
F

T

L
I
F

T

s

AR

Vending

FIRE EXIT

Plant room

RISER

r
e
f
u
g
e

FIRE EXIT

12,000 L

2x4x2m

Water t
ank

Paving Slabs

Z Panel 2250 x 1340

04 - 03

ã

â

November 2018

Proposed Floor Plans

All drawings are subject to full site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site.

MRA

CHQ.15.11432-PL106

1:100@A1

Proposed Ground Floor Plan Existing Hotel

NORTH

Sheet 1 of 2

Premier Inn

Milton Interchange

Milton, Nr Didcot, Oxon

OX14 4TX

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

CHQ Architects Ltd.

The Maltings, 44 Whitehorse Street,

Baldock, Hertfordshire SG7 6QQ

Telephone: (01462) 895110

Email: design@chq-architects.co.uk

           www.chq-architects.co.uk

ARCHITECTS

PLANNING

OXFORD SOUTH (DIDCOT)

HOTEL

Bedrooms

No. of Storeys

2

SITE AREA 1.39 Ha

PROPOSEDEXISTING

INCREASE /

DECREASE

135

4

215

+2

+80

HOTEL AREAS

EXISTING PROPOSED

INCREASE /

DECREASE

4888 sq m

Total GEA

4602 sq m

Total GIA

Ground Floor GIA

First Floor GIA

Second Floor GIA

Ground Floor GEA

First Floor GEA

Second Floor GEA

2689 sq m

1913 sq m

-

2851 sq m

2037 sq m

-

7531 sq m

7054 sq m

3329 sq m

2517 sq m

604 sq m

3541sq m

2688 sq m

651 sq m

+2643 sq m

+2452 sq m

+640 sq m

+604 sq m

+604 sq m

+690 sq m

+651 sq m

+651 sq m

Third Floor GIA

- 604 sq m +604 sq m

Third Floor GEA

- 651 sq m +651 sq m

P
age 26

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
UA

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
Vending

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
PLANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
BEER STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
BOTTLE STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
W & S

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
MALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
FEMALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
WASH UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
 SERVERY

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
MAIN STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
LINEN/CLEANERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
RETAINED

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
RECEPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
duct

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
PLANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
UA BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
PH BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
PH BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
UA BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
UA BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
PH BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
BEDROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
Belfast

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
sink

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
Ordnance Survey  information ã Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392 Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
INITIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
SCALE



0m 5m 10m

FIRE EXIT

U
P

LINEN/TEAM ROOM

s

AR

L
I
F

T

L
I
F

T

refuge

RISER

r
e
f
u
g
e

LINEN

U
P

L
I
F

T

L
I
F

T

refuge

RISER

r
e
f
u
g
e

LINEN

FIRE EXIT

L
I
F

T

L
I
F

T

refuge

Loft access

RISER

r
e
f
u
g
e

ã

â

Proposed Floor Plans

All drawings are subject to full site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site.

MRA

CHQ.15.11432-PL106

1:100@A1

OXFORD SOUTH (DIDCOT)

NORTH

Sheet 2 of 2

Proposed First Floor Plan Proposed Second Floor Plan

Premier Inn

Milton Interchange

Milton, Nr Didcot, Oxon

OX14 4TX

November 2018

HOTEL

Bedrooms

No. of Storeys

2

SITE AREA 1.39 Ha

PROPOSEDEXISTING

INCREASE /

DECREASE

135

4

215

+2

+80

HOTEL AREAS

EXISTING PROPOSED

INCREASE /

DECREASE

4888 sq m

Total GEA

4602 sq m

Total GIA

Ground Floor GIA

First Floor GIA

Second Floor GIA

Ground Floor GEA

First Floor GEA

Second Floor GEA

2689 sq m

1913 sq m

-

2851 sq m

2037 sq m

-

7531 sq m

7054 sq m

3329 sq m

2517 sq m

604 sq m

3541sq m

2688 sq m

651 sq m

+2643 sq m

+2452 sq m

+640 sq m

+604 sq m

+604 sq m

+690 sq m

+651 sq m

+651 sq m

Third Floor GIA

- 604 sq m +604 sq m

Third Floor GEA

- 651 sq m +651 sq m

CHQ Architects Ltd.

The Maltings, 44 Whitehorse Street,

Baldock, Hertfordshire SG7 6QQ

Telephone: (01462) 895110

Email: design@chq-architects.co.uk

           www.chq-architects.co.uk

ARCHITECTS

Proposed Third Floor Plan

PLANNING

Plant room re-located to suit new site position
A 17.09.18 MRA

P
age 27

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
Ordnance Survey  information ã Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392 Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
INITIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
SCALE



P
age 28



0m 5m

0m 5m 10m

C
M

 
-
 
1
8
3
0
x
8
9
0
x
8
6
0
m

m

V
e
n
d
i
n
g

C
M

 
-
 
1
8
3
0
x
8
9
0
x
8
6
0
m

m

V
e
n
d
i
n
g

Lobby

Reception

Access to Applecart

Premier Inn

S
i
g
n
a
g
e
 
s
h
o
w

n
 
a
s

i
n
d
i
c
a
t
i
v
e

ã

â

November 2018

Proposed Reception

Elevations

All drawings are subject to full site survey. All dimensions are to be checked on site.

OXFORD SOUTH (DIDCOT)

CNC

CHQ.15.11432-PL108

1:100@A1

Existing East Elevation
Existing West Elevation

Premier Inn

Milton Interchange

Milton, Nr Didcot, Oxon

OX14 4TX

Proposed East Elevation
Proposed West Elevation

Proposed Reception Plan

HOTEL

Bedrooms

No. of Storeys

2

SITE AREA 1.39 Ha

PROPOSEDEXISTING

INCREASE /

DECREASE

135

4

215

+2

+80

CHQ Architects Ltd.

The Maltings, 44 Whitehorse Street,

Baldock, Hertfordshire SG7 6QQ

Telephone: (01462) 895110

Email: design@chq-architects.co.uk

           www.chq-architects.co.uk

ARCHITECTS

Reception area included in total.

PLANNING

HOTEL AREAS

EXISTING PROPOSED

INCREASE /

DECREASE

4888 sq m

Total GEA

4602 sq m

Total GIA

Ground Floor GIA

First Floor GIA

Second Floor GIA

Ground Floor GEA

First Floor GEA

Second Floor GEA

2689 sq m

1913 sq m

-

2851 sq m

2037 sq m

-

7531 sq m

7054 sq m

3329 sq m

2517 sq m

604 sq m

3541sq m

2688 sq m

651 sq m

+2643 sq m

+2452 sq m

+640 sq m

+604 sq m

+604 sq m

+690 sq m

+651 sq m

+651 sq m

Third Floor GIA

- 604 sq m +604 sq m

Third Floor GEA

- 651 sq m +651 sq m

P
age 29

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
Ordnance Survey  information ã Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392 Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number AR100007392

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
INITIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
SCALE



P
age 30



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V2931/FUL
SITE Land to the rear of 10 Halls Close 

Drayton Abingdon, OX14 4LU
PARISH DRAYTON
PROPOSAL Removal of condition 14 (age restricted 

units) - on application ref. P15/V2077/O 

Outline application on Land to the Rear 
of 10 Halls Close, Drayton to provide up 
to 28 no. dwellings with all matters 
reserved except access

WARD MEMBER(S) Stuart Davenport
APPLICANT Blue Cedar Homes Limited
OFFICER Charlotte Brewerton

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that condition 14 is removed and that the application is 
approved subject to the conditions which are listed at the end of this 
report.

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is presented to planning committee as it has been called in by 

Councillor Davenport and because Drayton Parish Council object. 

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Outline planning permission for 28 dwellings was granted following an appeal 
against this council’s decision to refuse planning permission. In allowing the 
appeal the Planning Inspector imposed condition 14 which places an age 
restriction on the occupancy of 11 of the permitted dwellings. Condition 14 
states: 

The 11 Dwellings hereby permitted that form part of the retirement element to 
the scheme shall only be occupied by persons: 

a) Aged 60 or over;
b) Living as part of a single household with such a person or persons;
c) Who were living as part of a single household with such a person or 

persons at the property who have since died. 

This application seeks to remove condition 14 which would allow unrestricted 
occupation of the dwellings. The applicant explains that this is due to 
considerable uncertainty in the housing market and needing more flexibility. 

The site lies within the village of Drayton, is approximately 1 hectare in size 
and is located to the South of Halls Close, a cul-de-sac development of 10 
houses. The site has the appearance of a paddock, generally flat and open in 
nature. Ground works to the site started in October 2018. Access is via the 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2931/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

1.6

1.7

side of number 10 Halls Close. Whilst the access is located within the 
Conservation Area the site itself is not.

The site lies within the Lowland Vale landscape designation and also within 
Flood Zone one, the area at least risk of fluvial flooding. 

There are residential properties to the north and east of the site. Directly south 
lies Little Smith Farm and to the west and southwest lies a housing 
development nearing completion of 140 dwellings. 

1.8  A location plan showing the site in it local context is provided below:

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
A summary of the responses received to the application are included in the 
table below:

2.1 Drayton Parish Council Object
 Existence of this provision in the 

original application was material in the 
Planning Inspector’s decision to uphold 
Blue Cedar’s appeal.

 Traffic safety
 Increase in school age children on site 

and more funding required towards 
local schools

 Loss of retirement homes provision in 
Drayton a need for which has been 
identified.

Oxfordshire County Council 
Single Response

Highways – No Objection
 The previous legal agreements relating 

to the outline and reserved matters 
planning permissions are still 
applicable to the proposals.

Page 32



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

 Previous highways conditions remain 
valid. 

Education – No Objection
 The signed S106 still applies and 

includes a matrix to allow for changes 
in composition of development. 

 This matrix should now be applied to 
all dwellings, should the age restriction 
be removed. 

Urban Design Officer No Objection
 Many of the design issues that were 

raised back in early 2017 seem to have 
been addressed.

 A more positive and well defined edge 
to the  countryside could have been
achieved by facing the development 
outwards towards the countryside.

 A strong planting buffer should be 
provided to soften the impact of 
development and screening the hard 
boundary that would otherwise be 
created through the use of close-
boarded fencing.

Housing Development No Objection
No comments on affordable housing 
requirements or additional provision

Local residents Five letters of objection have been received:
 Age restriction is an important factor in 

the inspector allowing the appeal 
 Age restriction does not add to load on 

village amenities as much as market 
dwellings do.

 Increased traffic and poor junction 
visibility – safety concerns

 Housing in Drayton has reached 
capacity

 Area here already congested
 Specialist housing seems key decision 

to approve this development
 Identified need for this type of housing 
 Alter school age population of 

development and education 
requirements

 Road to be privately maintained – all 
roads should be adopted

Page 33



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

 Access extremenly limited, garage at 
number 10 should be removed to 
improve access

 Increase in families to market dwellings 
and increase in pedestrians needs 
pavements each side of access

 Traffic predictions do not seem 
plausible

3.0
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P18/V2086/DIS - Approved (26/10/2018)
Discharge of condition 6 - foul water drainage strategy on application ref. 
P15/V2077/O 

P18/V1683/DIS - Approved (03/09/2018)
Discharge of condition 2 - Contamination Evaluation Report and 4 - Materials 
on application ref P17/V1225/RM.

P18/V1195/DIS - Approved (24/08/2018)
Discharge of conditions 5 - sustainable surface water drainage scheme, 8 - 
travel plan, 9 - archaeological investigation and 12 - details of vehicular access 
to the site and visibility splays on application ref. P15/V2077/O 

P18/V1753/DIS - Approved (01/08/2018)
Discharge of condition 3 - Biodiversity Offsetting on application ref 
P17/V1225/RM.

P18/V1343/DIS - Approved (18/07/2018)
Discharge of condition 7 - Construction Traffic Management Plan and 10 - 
Archaeology Evaluation Report. On application P15/V2077/O.

P17/V1225/RM - Approved (19/04/2018)
Erection of 22 dwellings together with replacement garage for 10 Halls Close. 
As amended by plans and information received 19 July 2017; as amended by 
plans received 8 February 2018.

P15/V2077/O - Refused (27/01/2016) - Appeal allowed (02/11/2016)
Outline application on Land to the Rear of 10 Halls Close, Drayton to provide 
up to 28 no. dwellings with all matters reserved except access (As amended by 
Drawing No: 14.070.SK13 (Site Layout) accompanying agent's letter dated 2 
November 2015)

4.0 MAIN ISSUES
4.1 The main planning considerations relevant to this application are: 

1. The principle of removing or varying a condition
2. Condition 14 removal 
3. Technical matters
4. Financial Contributions

Page 34



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

The principle of removing or varying a condition
When planning permission is granted, development must take place in 
accordance with the permission and conditions attached to it, and with any 
associated legal agreements. New issues may arise after planning permission 
has been granted, which require modification of the approved proposals, and 
under Section 73 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 an application can 
be made to vary or remove conditions associated with a planning permission. 

Removal of Condition 14
Condition 14 of planning approval P15/V2077/O states that:
The 11 dwellings hereby permitted that form part of the retirement element of 
the scheme shall only be occupied by persons:

a) Aged 60 or over;
b) Living as part of a single household with such a person or persons;
c) Who were living as part of a single household with such a person or 

persons at the property who have since died. 

The appeal decision report states that ‘In principle, a condition to control the 
range of the use that would be permitted in 11 of the proposed dwellings, 
including occupancy of those units as per the details set out in the planning 
application, would be necessary as the proposal has been assessed and 
considered on that basis. For instance, unconstrained use of those dwellings 
would be likely to increase the school-aged population of the development 
thereby altering the education requirements that would result from the 
development.’

Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) as education authority has no objection 
given that the signed Section 106 (S106) Legal agreement included a matrix to 
allow for changes in the composition of development. This matrix calculates the 
required education contributions based on the number of dwellings in the 
development. This matrix would now be applied to all houses in the 
development and is index linked.

Having sought legal advice on this matter both OCC’s Principal Infrastructure 
Funding Negotiator and Vale of White Horse Solicitor, both have confirmed that 
based on these comments all legal contributions have been caught under the 
original S106 and Unilateral Undertaking (UU) and therefore there is no need to 
require the developer to seek a Deed of Variation (DoV) as part of this 
application. All financial contributions, including the increase in education 
requirements have been secured. The removal of this condition will have no 
bearing on these financial obligations and mitigate for increased capacity at 
local schools.

Officers consider that the removal of Condition 14 does accord with Policies 
CP4, CP7, CP22, CP24 of Vale of White Horse Local Plan Part 1 and Policies 
P-H2 and P-H3 of the Drayton Neighbourhood Development Plan. 

Page 35



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

Technical Matters

Traffic and Road Safety
Concerns from neighbours have cited access arrangements, increase in traffic 
from an increased number of market dwellings and concerns over road safety 
for pedestrians. 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that ‘Development 
should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on 
the road network would be severe.’

In the original outline application, the Technical Note (TN) submitted with the 
application was based on up to 28 dwellings. The inspector would have had 
regard to this information during the appeal. On submission of the Reserved 
Matters, the application was for 22 dwellings only.  This site has planning 
approval for 22 dwellings in its layout and this does not change with the 
removal of Condition 14.

OCC Highways Officer has advised that ‘the Technical Note (TN), submitted in 
support of the proposals consider the generation associated with up to 28 
dwellings at the site, based on 11 affordable and 17 open market units, using 
trip rates agreed as part of the outline consent.’ 

‘As a result, the TN has demonstrated that there would be an increase of 
approximately 4 and 3 trips within the AM and PM peak hours respectively, 
above that which was identified in the original scheme. However, it is noted that 
the number of dwellings at the site will be lower than those detailed within the 
TN, leading to a lesser increase in traffic’. In addition, in terms of car parking 
within the site, this will not be affected by the removal of this condition. 

There is no technical objection to the relatively minor changes in traffic 
movements on this site. The NPPF has advised that refusal should only occur 
where there would be severe traffic implications arising from development. This 
cannot be demonstrated by the removal of Condition 14.   

All other technical matters regarding access, pavement provision, safety for 
pedestrians have been considered acceptable for up to 28 dwellings on this 
site by the Inspector at appeal. There would be no change to these elements 
and the access, and pavements remain safe for users.  

Some local residents are concerned that the road serving the additional market 
dwellings is to remain private and could cause additional long-term problems 
within the site. The Highways Officer has no objection to this road remaining 
private road as considered on appeal. Officers conclude that there is no 
technical reason to alter this detail.   

Removal of Condition 14 is in accordance with Policy CP7 and CP33 of the 
VOWH LPP1 and P-T1 of Drayton Neighbourhood Development Plan.

Page 36



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

Residential Amenity
There would be no unreasonable impact on the living conditions of 
neighbouring dwellings including occupants of Halls Close. The Reserved 
Matters application found these details to be acceptable and as there would be 
no changes in design through the removal of condition 14 there would be no 
harmful impact upon residential amenity. 

Drayton Parish Council have concerns that the requirement for elderly housing 
provision has not been met across other allocated sites within Drayton and the 
model, which was assessed on appeal, would have been a consideration in 
allowing this appeal. 

Officers consider that the use of these dwellings as elderly accommodation 
only is not a prerequisite for allowing planning approval and removing condition 
14 does not prevent elderly people from buying the dwellings. The principle of 
development on this site is acceptable in terms of its technical assessment at 
appeal. Furthermore, the reserved matters have assessed the details in terms 
of layout, appearance, landscaping and scale and given that these elements 
are not differing to that approved Officers find no reason to refuse based on the 
removal of condition 14. 

Removal of condition 14 is in accordance with Policy CP37 of the VOWH LPP1 
and saved policy DC9 of the LP 2011 and Policies P-LF2, P-LF3, P-LF4, PLF5, 
P-WP1, PH1 of the Drayton Neighbourhood Development Plan. 

4.22

4.23

Other technical matters
Impacts arising from landscape and visual impact, impacts for the character or 
appearance of the conservation area and its setting, flood risk, biodiversity, 
housing mix, housing density and design were previously assessed in detail at 
both the appeal and reserved matters stage and were considered acceptable 
by the respective Inspector and Planning Officers.  Officers consider the 
proposed removal of the condition would not result in any material change and 
the impacts for these matters remains acceptable.

Removal of condition 14 is in accordance with Policies CP1, CP2, CP4, CP7, 
CP37, CP38, CP39, CP44, CP45 and CP46 of the VOWH LPP1 and Policies 
P-LF2, P-LF3, P-LF4, P-LF5, P-LF6, P-WP1, P-H1, P-S1 of the Drayton 
Neighbourhood Plan.

4.24

4.25

Financial contributions
At the appeal a s106 agreement was executed by unilateral undertaking (UU) 
to provide for affordable housing and off-site financial contributions including 
education to mitigate for the impact of the development. No further financial 
contributions, other than those as stated within the signed UU, will be required. 

This application was assessed prior to the adoption of CIL. There will be no 
increase in floorspace throughout the site and therefore the developer’s 
contributions have been caught under the existing UU and the Council will not 
be seeking any further contributions. 

Page 37



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

5.0 CONCLUSION
5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

The application has been determined in accordance with the development plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Inspector imposed the original age restriction condition primarily over 
concerns that there would be impacts to the education requirements with the 
potential for more school age occupants of the dwellings. Oxfordshire County 
Council has confirmed that the matrix, set within the Signed S106, allows 
changes in composition of the development and that the matrix within the S106 
can secure an uplift in education financial contributions to mitigate for the 
increase in school age occupants. This would now include the additional 11 
dwellings to be changed increasing the education contributions therefore 
offsetting the harm.

Furthermore, the Highways Officer has advised that the original traffic 
generation was calculated on 28 dwellings. The site now only accommodates 22 
dwellings and the TN cannot demonstrate severe harm arising from traffic 
generation on this site.  

All other technical evidence has been assessed on appeal and at reserved 
matters stage. There are proposed to be no changes in layout nor would there 
be any design changes to the site as part of this application. Officers therefore 
have no technical reasons to object to the removal of condition 14. 

5.5 The following planning policies have been taken into account:

5.6 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 Policies (VOWH LPP1): 
CP1 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP2 – Cooperation on unmet housing need for Oxfordshire
CP3 – Settlement Hierarchy
CP4 – Meeting our housing needs
CP5 – Housing supply ring-fence
CP7 – Providing supporting infrastructure and services 
CP8 – Spatial Strategy for Abingdon & Oxford Fringe sub-area
CP22 – Housing mix
CP23 – Housing density
CP24 – Affordable Housing
CP33 – Promoting sustainable transport, cycling and walking
CP36 – Electronic communications
CP37 – Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP38 – Design strategies for strategic and major development sites
CP39 – The Historic Environment
CP42 – Flood Risk
CP43 – Natural resources
CP44 – Landscape
CP45 – Green Infrastructure
CP46 – Conservation and improvement of biodiversity

Page 38



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

Saved Policies of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 (LP 2011):
DC1 – Design
DC3 – Design against crime
DC5 – Access
DC6 – Landscaping
DC7 – Waste collection and recycling
DC9 – The impact of development on neighbouring uses
DC12 – Water quality and resources
H23 – Open space in new housing development 
HE10 – Archaeology 
NE9 – Lowland Vale

Emerging Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2
A publication draft of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 has been subject 
to Examination and Main Modifications are out to public consultation until 1 April 2019.  
Its policies are a material consideration although full weight cannot be given to them at 
present.   The following policies are material to the consideration of this application:

DP2 - Space Standards
DP8 - Community Services and Facilities
DP16 - Access
DP17 - Transport Assessments and Travel Plans
DP21 - External Lighting
DP23 - Impact of Development on Amenity
DP24 - Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Developments
DP25 - Noise Pollution
DP26 - Air Quality
DP27 - Land Affected by Contamination
DP28 - Waste Collection and Recycling
DP33 - Open Space
DP36 - Heritage Assets
DP39 - Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments

Neighbourhood plan
Drayton has an Adopted Neighbourhood plan. 
The relevant policies are listed below: P-LF2: Bonded Development
P-LF3: Building Design Guidance
P-LF4: Conservation Area
P-LF5: The Historic Environment
P-LF6: Additional Greenery
P-Wp1: Connected Development
P-T1: Travel Plans
P-S1: Biodiversity
P-H1: Scale of development and Site allocation
P-H2: Affordable Housing
P-H3: Contributions

Adopted Guidance
Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD – March 2015
Developer Contributions SPD – June 2017 

Page 39



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

5.11 Other Relevant Legislation and Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 
Community & Infrastructure Levy Legislation
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Obligations under Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010
Provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998
Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006 
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010
Localism Act (including New Homes Bonus)

Author:          Charlotte Brewerton
Contact No:   01235 422600
Email:            planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

No. Condition

Page 40



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than 19 
October 2018. 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans in so far as those plans relate to matters not
reserved for future determination: Location Plan - Dwg No 14.070.SI.01;
Proposed Site Access Arrangement drawing - Figure 3.1 from within the
Transport Statement (TPA, Aug 2015).

3. All works and development on site, including demolition, shall be carried out
in accordance the Arboricultural Impact Assessment and the Tree Protection
Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement (both Bosky Trees, 27 August 2015) and 
the identified tree protected areas shall not be used at any time to park or 
manoeuvre vehicles, for site temporary offices or other structures, store building 
materials or soil, mix cement/concrete or light bonfires.

4. Surface Urban Drainage System to be implemented as per those details agreed on 
24 August 2018 by application P18/V1195/DIS 

5. Foul Water Drainage to be implemented as per those details agreed on 26 October 
2018 by application P18/V2086/DIS

6. Construction Traffic Management Plan to be implemented as per those details 
agreed on 18 July 2018 by application P18/V1343/DIS

7. Travel Plan to be implemented as per those details agreed on 24 August 2018 by 
application P18/V1195/DIS
 

8. Archaeology Investigation to be implemented as per those details agreed on 24 
August 2018 by application P18/V1195/DIS

9. Archaeology Watching Brief to be implemented as per those details agreed on 18 
July 2018 by application P18/V1343/DIS

10. Elements of public art shall be incorporated into the development in
accordance with a scheme that shall be submitted to the Council prior to dwellings 
being built above slab level. Thereafter, the public art elements shall be provided 
and maintained in accordance with the agreed details prior to occupation of the 
penultimate dwelling.

11. Vehicular Access to be implemented as per those details agreed on 24 August 
2018 by application P18/V1195/DIS

12. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in full accordance
with the scheme of mitigation, compensation and enhancement contained in
Section 6 of the Ecological Appraisal (Malford Environmental Consulting,
3 July 2015). Any variation shall be agreed in writing by the local planning
authority before such change is made. This condition will be discharged on
receipt of a letter from the project ecologist providing evidence to
demonstrate that the mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures
have been implemented in accordance with the approved report.

Page 41



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V2930/HH
SITE 29 Montagu Road Botley Oxford, OX2 

9AQ
PARISH NORTH HINKSEY
PROPOSAL Demolish rear conservatory and garage, 

add additional 2nd storey to side 
extension, add rear single storey 
extension.

WARD MEMBER(S) Debby Hallett
Emily Smith

APPLICANT Mr Marc Gannon
OFFICER Lewis Dixey

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that planning permssion is granted subject to the 
following conditions:

Standard Conditions:

1. Commencement within 3 years
2. Development to be completed in accordance with the approved plans

Pre-occupation condition:

3. Car parking plan to be submitted

Compliance condition:

4. Materials in accordance with the details on the application

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is referred to committee as the agent is an elected member.

1.2 The property is a semi-detached dwelling located on a corner plot adjacent to 
the junction of Montagu Road and Crabtree Road on the Elms Rise estate in 
Botley. 

1.3 Neighbouring properties share boundaries to the west (no.31 Montagu Road) 
and south-east (no.2 Crabtree Road), with highway access obtained at the 
front of the site. 

1.4 The application seeks planning permission to demolish the existing rear 
extension and detached garage and erect single storey rear and first-floor side 
extensions.

Page 42

Agenda Item 9

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2930/HH


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

1.5 The single storey rear enlargement will project 3 metres from the original rear 
elevation of the property with a first floor added above the existing side 
extension off the north-west elevation. 

1.6 Internal alterations will increase the number of bedrooms from three to six.

1.7 All external materials to be used would match the original dwelling. 

1.8 There are no site constraints present and a site location plan is provided 
below:

1.9 Extracts of the application plans can be found attached at Appendix 1.

Page 43



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 North Hinksey Parish Council Objection

On the grounds of overdevelopment 
and lack of sufficient parking.

Vale - Highways Liaison Officer 
(Oxfordshire County Council)

No objection
Subject to submission of a parking 
plan prior to occupation 

Neighbours (2) Objection
On the grounds of parking and 
additional traffic.

Local Ward Member Emily Smith Objection
Insufficient parking on a junction with 
poor visibility. The proposal appears 
to be to enable conversion to a HMO. 
Off road parking is essential in this 
location on a bus route and a main 
route to primary and secondary 
schools. 

Local Ward Member Debbie Hallett Objection
Insufficient on-site parking provision. 
The proposal appears to be for a 
HMO. On-street parking is strictly 
limited at this corner location on a 
bus route. 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P87/V1469 - Approved (17/06/1987)

Extension to provide kitchen and dining room. Planning Application History

3.2 Pre-application History
None

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 Householder development does not fall within the defined scope for potential 

EIA development.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
The main relevant planning considerations are the following:

 Character and appearance;
 Residential amenity;
 Access and parking
 Potential use of the site as a HMO

Page 44

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P87/V1469


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

5.1 Character and appearance 
The proposed extensions would appear as subordinate additions to the main 
dwelling, being set lower than the original roof height and set back from the 
principal elevation, complying with the principles of the council’s design guide. 
The use of matching materials retains the character of the local area and it is 
the opinion of officers that the visual amenity of the local area will not be 
harmed as a result of this development 

5.2 Residential amenity
Taking into account the orientation of the property and its relationship with the 
surrounding dwellings, officers do not consider that the proposal would harm 
the amenities of any of the neighbouring properties in terms of dominance, 
overshadowing or overlooking.

5.3 The Parish Council raise concerns over potential overdevelopment of the site. 
Currently the usable rear garden is markedly constrained by the presence of 
the existing garage which is sent behind the house. The proposal involves 
demolition of the garage, so making the rear garden more usable. The area of 
the rear garden, taking account of the intended larger rear extension, will be 
approximately 60 sq.m. Rear gardens of this size are not unusual on corner 
plots in the vicinity, for example at no.19 Finmore Road and no.42 Montagu 
Road. Given this, officers conclude that the site would retain sufficient amenity 
space. In addition, it is considered that the proposed extensions will sit 
comfortably within the plot and will not appear dominant or out of place within 
the street scene. 

5.4 Access and parking
The main objections to the application from neighbouring residents, the parish 
council and local members relate to the proposed parking provision. The 
proposal will increase the number of bedrooms in the house from three to six. 
Oxfordshire County Council highways officer has made an assessment of the 
application and concluded that two parking spaces are acceptable in this 
location subject to the condition of a parking plan to be submitted and approved 
prior to first occupation of the new development. 

5.5 Members will be aware of national guidance on parking standards in paragraph 
105 of the National Planning Policy Framework. National policy has 
encouraged a reduction in the use of the car for many years, and the NPPF 
states that factors such as accessibility of the site, quality and proximity of 
public transport, and the type of development should be taken into account 
when assessing car parking requirements. The site lies on a regular bus route 
into and out of Oxford, with a half-hour service throughout the day, seven days 
a week. The nearest bus stop on Finmore Road is only 150 metres from the 
site. Cycling into and out of Oxford is also a highly realistic option. It is known 
from surveys that car ownership levels in Oxford are relatively low. Within the 
Vale as a whole, the highways officer considers that, if a meaningful reduction 
in car usage is to be realistically achieved, then highly sustainable sites like the 
application site are clear candidates for reduced parking to encourage 
occupants to use the easily available alternate modes of transport. 

Page 45



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

5.6 Potential Use of the Site as a HMO
Objections have been raised over the potential use of the house as an HMO (a 
house in multiple occupation) and the impact this would have on parking in the 
local area. The proposal as described in the application is to use the building 
as a single dwelling house, not a HMO, and the applicant has re-affirmed this 
to officers. The application plans show three bedrooms with en-suites on each 
floor, the ground and first. Although this may lead to an assumption about 
future use, officers’ advice is there is insufficient evidence upon which to base 
such an assumption. Officers expect that, at appeal, a planning inspector will 
take the same approach, and a refusal of permission that is not supported by 
clear evidence can place the council in a vulnerable position at appeal. 
Officers’ advice is that the proposal should be judged on its own merits, as an 
extension to a single house. The highways officer has made an assessment of 
the parking provision for the proposal on this basis.

5.7 It should be noted that under the Schedule 2, Part 3, Class L of the Town & 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, a 
change of use from Class C3 (dwellinghouse) to Class C4 (small house in 
multiple occupation) accommodating up to 6 unrelated individuals is permitted 
development, and can be achieved without the need to obtain planning 
permission. This national right applies to all houses, and, as with all permitted 
development rights, should only be restricted or removed in exceptional 
circumstances.

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 The proposal would not harm the character and appearance of the area or the 

amenities of neighbours and would not impact highway safety. The proposal 
therefore complies with the provisions of the development plan, in particular 
policy CP37 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Plan 2031, Part 1 and saved 
policies DC5 and DC9 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Plan 2011. The 
works are considered to comply with the provisions of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and the council’s adopted Design Guide SPD 2015.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 saved policies
DC5  -  Access
DC9  -  The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses

National Planning Policy Framework 2018

National Planning Practice Guidance 2014

Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD 2015

Page 46



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

Neighbourhood Plan
North Hinksey Parish Council is working on creating a neighbourhood plan 
which is currently out to consultation. Given the stage that it is at, the plan 
currently holds limited weight.

Equalities Act 2010
The proposal has been assessed against section 149 of the Equalities Act. It is 
considered that no identified group will suffer discrimination as a result of this 
proposal.

Author: Lewis Dixey 
Email: lewis.dixey@southandvale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01235 422600

Page 47

mailto:lewis.dixey@southandvale.gov.uk


Appendix 1

P
age 48



P
age 49



P
age 50



Page 51



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V2756/FUL
SITE Jigsaw Coopers Lane Wantage, OX12 

8HQ
PARISH WANTAGE
PROPOSAL Proposed new dwelling, garage and 

partial demolition of the existing dwelling 
with that retained to be used as an 
outbuilding used for storage (As 
amended by plan received 18 January 
2019).

WARD MEMBER(S) Charlotte Dickson
St John Dickson

APPLICANT Mr & Mrs Brook Alder
OFFICER Alastair Scott

RECOMMENDATION
Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:

Standard:
1. Commencement - 3 years
2. Approved plans

Prior to Occupation:
3. HY6 - Access, parking and turning in accordance with plans
4. MC3 - Materials in accordance with the application
5. Appearance and layout of retained part of bungalow to be implemented
   in accordance with plans

Compliance:
6. Remove permitted development rights for garage

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application comes to committee at the request of the local member, St 

John Dickson

1.2 The application site is located at the northern end of Coopers Lane, a single-
track road, and has an existing semi-detached bungalow within it. The other, 
attached bungalow, Charvale, is to the west. To the south is a chalet bungalow 
known as Jocks, or Garden Lodge, while to the east are no.44/44A and no.45 
Palmers, all two-storey houses. To the north lies the Humber Ditch which is 
separated from the proposed development site by hard standing, footpaths 
and a notable change in ground levels.

1.3 The proposal is to demolish the existing semi-detached bungalow and erect a 
replacement one-and-a-half storey, 4 bedroom dwelling, set further to the east, 

Page 52

Agenda Item 10

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2756/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

and a detached treble garage close to the east boundary. The proposed 
dwelling has a split level to accommodate a drop in site level of approximately 
800mm. The original version of the proposal has been revised to lower the 
height of the garage from its original 7m to 5.8m and, consequently, the 
applicant is proposing to retain part of the existing bungalow to use as an 
outbuilding to be used for storage.

1.4 A site location plan is below and the application plans are attached in 
Appendix 1.

Page 53



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

2.0
SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

2.1 Wantage Town Council Objects on the following grounds:
 Overdevelopment of the site 
 Size and position of garage 

being overbearing on 
neighbouring properties 

 Garage not be used for 
accommodation

Neighbours 5 households have raised objections 
and 1 households has supported the 
application. The grounds for 
objection can be summarised as 
follows:

 Height, scale, mass and 
position of garage overbearing 
on neighbours, impacting on 
their amenity

 Over-development of the site 
 Visual impact of large garage 
 Object to garage being used 

for accommodation 
 New dwelling too large and 

out of character  
 Balcony on new dwelling 

would compromise privacy
 Noise of activities from games 

room 
 Structural damage to 

neighbouring property 
 Inadequate turning area within 

curtilage  

County Highways Officer No objection subject to conditions

Countryside Officer No objection

Contaminated land No objection

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P02/V1421 - Approved (03/10/2002)

Two storey side extension, loft conversion and internal alterations to form 
chalet bungalow.

Page 54

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P02/V1421


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.0 MAIN ISSUES
4.1 Design and Layout

New dwelling 
The locality is one with a variety of types and design of dwelling. The proposed 
dwelling is of a traditional design which is considered to be in sympathy with 
the wider character and appearance of the area. There is a drop in level across 
the site and the proposed dwelling has been designed with a split level, with 
the floor level reduced by approximately 800mm between the front and back of 
the dwelling. The ridge height at the front is approximately 6.8m and at the rear 
is approximately 7.5m. The eaves height is approximately 3.7m. There will be a 
balcony in the north-east corner of the dwelling, facing the rear garden. Overall, 
it is considered that the height, scale and mass of the proposed dwelling is 
acceptable and therefore satisfies policy CP37 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 
and the design principles contained within the Council’s Design Guide SPD.   

4.2 New Garage 
Objections have been received concerning the garage that it does not conform 
with design principle DG104 of the Council’s Design Guide 2015. DG104 states 
that any outbuilding should not compete with the main dwelling and the original 
building should remain the dominant element of the property and that the effect 
of any outbuilding should not overwhelm the house from any given view point.

4.3 Concerns were also raised that the original garage design included dormer 
windows for the proposed first floor games room and could be used for 
additional accommodation. A revised drawing was submitted by the applicant 
to reduce its height by 1.2m to 5.8m in height and therefore reduce its visual 
impact in terms of its scale and mass. As a result of the revised design, the 
proposed upper floor dormer windows have been replaced by sky lights. 
Consequently, it is considered that the design, scale and mass of the garage 
are acceptable and satisfy the design principles contained within the Council’s 
Design Guidance SPD.         

4.4 Retention of part of the existing dwelling 
As result of the reduction in the height of the garage which is considered by the 
applicant to reduce its capacity for storage and to accommodate a games 
room, the applicant has decided to retain that part of the existing bungalow 
next to the attached neighbour, approximately 40sq.m in floor area, and use 
that for storage and a games room. Subject to receipt of details of external 
appearance and internal layout, which can be secured by condition, officers 
consider this to be acceptable.        

4.5 Over-development of the site
Several representations, including that of Wantage Town Council, have raised 
the issue that the proposal constitutes over-development of the site. It is 
considered that the curtilage of the site is relatively extensive and, when the 
proposals have been completed, there would be at least 250sq.m of usable 
private amenity space, a more than sufficient amount. Consequently, the 
proposal is not considered to constitute over-development of the site.

Page 55



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.6 Residential Amenity
Several representations have been received from the residents of neighbouring 
properties in relation to the new dwelling and garage having an unacceptable 
impact upon their amenity. They have raised concerns about the height, scale 
and mass of the buildings which they consider would have an overbearing 
nature, significant visual impact and overshadow their properties. They 
consider that the proposals would not comply with policy DC9 of the Local Plan 
2011 which relates to the impact of new development on the amenity of 
neighbours. 

4.7 New dwelling 
The residents of the properties located to the east of the site, no.44 and 44A 
Palmers, have expressed concern about the height of the new dwelling and the 
proposed rear balcony which would, they argue, compromise their privacy by 
allowing views across into their garden. The proposed balcony would be to the 
rear of the new dwelling and would lie approximately 5m from the boundary. 
Therefore, although it would be approximately 24m from the nearest part of the 
neighbouring house, its proximity to the boundary means officers consider a 
privacy screen should be installed at the east end of the balcony. This can be 
secured via condition. With this screen in place there will be no harm to the 
amenity of neighbours. Given the distance of the proposed dwelling to the 
neighbours’ houses (22m to no.44/44A and 25m to no.45), officers consider 
there would be no harm from dominance or loss of light.

4.8 New Garage 
The residents of no.45 Palmers and those of Garden Lodge and Elm Gable 
(located to the south of the site) have objected to the height and overall size of 
the proposed garage raising concerns about the visual impact it would have 
due to its overbearing height and closeness to each of their boundaries. 

4.9 The amendment to the garage has reduced its height from 7m to 5.8m. It will 
now have the scale of a domestic outbuilding. It will lie approximately 17 
metres from the rear wall of no.45 Palmers and approximately 13m from the 
closest wall of Garden Lodge. There will be no upper floor windows facing 
either neighbour. Given its amended height, these distances are considered 
sufficient to avoid harm from dominance or overshadowing. To prevent the 
potential insertion of new windows or rooflights, permitted development rights 
for enlargements or alterations to the garage is recommended. 

4.10 Retention of part of the existing dwelling    
The residents the semi- detached dwelling (Charvale) to the west of the 
application site have objected to the partial demolition of the existing bungalow 
and its proposed use for storage. They have raised concerns about potential 
structural damage to their property when demolition is being undertaken. This 
is a legal matter between the two parties and is not a material planning 
consideration. Concern has also been raised about the potential noise from the 
proposed use as a games room. As there is no evidence to suggest that noise 
levels from a domestic games room will be any different to those expected from 
the current residential occupation of the bungalow, officers consider this 
concern does not warrant any restriction to prevent the intention.

Page 56



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

4.11 Traffic, parking and highway safety
The County Highways Officer has been consulted. The proposal is for a 
replacement dwelling using the same access as existing. Adequate car parking 
and turning has been demonstrated. He has no objection subject to conditions.

4.12 Biodiversity
The Council’s Countryside Officer has visited the site and conducted a brief 
walkover inspection of the habitats on and near to the site. He has commented 
that the existing dwelling has a converted roof void and interlocking roof tiles 
and that there is a low risk of bats being impacted by this development. The 
Humber Ditch, to the north of the site, is separated from the proposed 
development by hard standing footpaths and a significant change in ground 
levels. Having regard for these factors, and that the southern bank of the 
watercourse is engineered, the Countryside Officer is satisfied that the 
proposed development is unlikely to have an adverse impact on this 
watercourse. As such, subject to the addition of the following informative, the 
Countryside Officer has no objections to the application proposal.

4.13 Other matters 
Community Infrastructure Levy 
The development is liable to CIL. A charge of £28,558.51 was calculated on 
submission of the application, which will be increased by index linking 
depending on when the development occurs.

5.0 CONCLUSION
5.1 It is considered that the changes made to the proposal in terms of the reducing 

the height of the garage mean that it is now acceptable in terms of design, 
impact on neighbours and highway safety. It therefore accords with relevant 
policies of the development plan and with the NPPF.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies:

CP37 - Design and Local Distinctiveness 
CP42 - Flood Risk 

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 saved policies: 

DC5 - Access 
DC6 - Landscaping 
DC7 - Waste Collection and Recycling 
DC9 - The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses 

Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 policies: 

Page 57



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

(These policies have limited weight at present due to the draft status of the plan) 
DP16 – Access
DP23 – Impact on Amenity

Vale of White Horse Design Guide (March 2015) 

National Planning Policy Framework, 2019 

Planning Practice Guidance, 2014 

Equality Act 2010
The application has been assessed against section 149 of the Equality Act. It is 
considered that no recognised group will suffer discrimination as a result of the 
proposal. 

Human Rights Act, 1998 
The application has been assessed against Articles 1 and 8. The impact on 
individuals has been balanced against the public interest and the officer 
recommendation is considered to be proportionate.

Author: Alastair Scott 
Email: Alastair.Scott@ whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
Tel: 01235 422600

Page 58



Appendix 1

P
age 59



P
age 60



Page 61



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/V2738/FUL
SITE Watchfield Swindon, SN6
PARISH WATCHFIELD
PROPOSAL Artistic trail throughout the village.  (As 

amended by plans received on 21 
January 2019, 7 February 2019 and 27 
February 2019)

WARD MEMBER(S) Simon Howell
Elaine Ware

APPLICANT Vale of White Horse District Council
OFFICER Sally Appleyard

RECOMMENDATION
That planning permission is granted, subject to the following conditions:

Standard
1. Commencement of development within 3 years
2. Development in accordance with the approved plans 

Compliance
3. Materials in accordance with submitted details

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 The application is referred to committee as the proposal involves the council 

as applicant and objections have been received. 

1.2 The proposal involves the installation of public art throughout the village of 
Watchfield, and is the implementation of a Section 106 funded project 
following the approval of various major applications. 

1.3 The public art proposed includes marker stones, seating and sculptures, which 
relate to the history of the village. The public art is within six areas across the 
village as follows:

 Recreation Ground – 2x Sandstone Benches
 Majors Road/High Street Junction – 1x Airfield Marker Stone
 Star Lane - 1x Up-right Seat
 Meadow View Development – 1x Leaf Sculpture and 1x Sandstone 

Bench
 Faringdon Road/High Street Junction – Village Marker Stone

Examples of some of the proposed artwork can be found attached at 
Appendix one. 

1.4 None of the areas for the proposed sculptures are within a conservation area. 

Page 62

Agenda Item 11

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/V2738/FUL


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

1.5 As originally submitted, the precise locations and dimensions of the proposed 
sculptures were unclear. Block plans of each area have since been submitted, 
which clearly demonstrate the position of each sculpture. 

1.6 The proposed Anglo-Saxon Cross Marker Stone at Chapel Hill/Oak Road 
Junction has since been omitted from the proposal following concerns 
regarding the impact on the setting of listed buildings.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 A summary of the consultations and representations received in response to 

the application is provided below. The full comments are available on the 
council’s website. There were two consultations during the application process. 
The responses received to all of the amendments have been grouped together 
for ease under one heading below.

Watchfield Parish Council Original Plans
Fully support, for the following reasons:

 Community led
 Reflects the history of the village

Local Residents Original Plans
Five letters of support received, for the 
following reasons:

 Community led
 Reflects the history of the village
 The art work will enhance the village
 Good design and quality

Three letters of objection received. The 
reasons for objection are as follows:

 The proposed Anglo-Saxon sculpture 
will detract from the simple beauty of 
the area

 The proposed Anglo-Saxon sculpture 
will be an eye sore

 The proposed Anglo-Saxon sculpture 
will harm the setting of listed buildings 
and the medieval square

 Concerns that S106 money could have 
been better spent on other facilities in 
the village

Amended plans
Eight further letters of support received. No 
further objections received.

Page 63



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

Highways Liaison Officer 
(Oxfordshire County 
Council)

Original Plans
 Unclear of precise locations and 

whether they would result in 
obstruction of vision splays

Amended Plans
No objection

Contaminated Land (Vale) Original Plans
No objection

Amended Plans
No objection

County Archaeologist No comments received.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P17/V2182/DIS - Approved (04/09/2017)

Discharge of Condition(s) 17 ()  of planning permission P12/V2283/O

Residential development for up to 100 dwellings; provision of Extra Care 
Housing comprising 50 No. apartments to meet the needs of the elderly (Class 
C2); provision of two Learning Disability Homes comprising 17 No. bedrooms in 
total (Class C2); together with means of access.

P12/V1275/PEJ - Other Outcome (17/11/2016)
Residential development for 100-200 units to also possibly include extra care 
units.

P15/V1617/NM - Approved (11/08/2015)
Non-material amendment to planning permission P13/V2359/RM, for Plot 1 
double garage to be substituted with extended double garage for the purpose 
of temporary Sales office unit.

Reserved Matters application following Outline permission P12/V2283/O.

P15/V1591/RM - Other Outcome (10/08/2015)
Changes in house types for 41 units to reflect latest Barratt models and market 
demands. 

P14/V1044/FUL - Other Outcome (07/08/2014)
Variation of condition 5 of planning permission P12/V2283/O, to correct the 
reference to the tree report.

P13/V2359/RM - Approved (04/08/2014)
Reserved Matters application following Outline permission P12/V2283/O

P12/V2283/O - Approved (04/08/2014)

Page 64

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V2182/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P12/V1275/PEJ
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/V1617/NM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/V1591/RM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/V1044/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/V2359/RM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P12/V2283/O


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

Residential development for up to 100 dwellings; provision of Extra Care 
Housing comprising 50 No. apartments to meet the needs of the elderly (Class 
C2); provision of two Learning Disability Homes comprising 17 No. bedrooms in 
total (Class C2); together with means of access.

P13/V2160/DIS - Approved (07/10/2013)
Discharge of condition 8 relating to application P12/V2283/O

P13/V1519/DIS - Approved (12/08/2013)
Discharge of conditions 1(part), 3 and 8(part) for planning permission 
P12/V2283/O.

3.2 Pre-application History
None

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The proposal does not fall within the defined scope for potential EIA 

development.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following:

 Design and visual amenity
 Residential amenity
 Highway safety

5.2 Design and visual amenity
Policy CP37 of the Local Plan requires development to be of high quality 
design. Saved Policy DC4 of the adopted Local Plan 2011 and Policy DP20 of 
the emerging Local Plan 2031 part 2, states that the aim in providing public art 
is to “improve the quality of new developments by producing a more stimulating 
environment which will enhance the appearance of the district and provide a 
higher quality of heritage for future generations to enjoy”. The Council will seek 
to support and promote the arts in association with new development in a 
variety of locations. Public Art can make a positive contribution to the character 
of an area, especially if it draws inspiration from local themes or associations 
and the use of decorative art to improve the ‘sense of place’ can be widely 
appreciated by the public. The councils design guide also supports public art 
that plays a significant part in the character of the public realm, creating 
distinctive places. 

5.3 The proposal involves the installation of public art, including marker stones, 
benches and sculptures throughout the village of Watchfield. The public art has 
been developed through the Watchfield Community Plan group, with the 
designs marking the history of the village from ancient to modern. The 
sculptures are to be constructed of sandstone which have been carved with the 
designs developed by the community. The proposed public art is considered to 
be of a high quality and aesthetically pleasing in design terms, and will make a 
positive contribution to the character of the area, drawing on local themes. The 
art provides a mixture of elements which are of a suitable scale and design, 

Page 65

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/V2160/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P13/V1519/DIS


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

and which also includes benches that would benefit the local community 
functionally as well as aesthetically. 

5.4 Concerns have been raised by local residents that the proposed sculpture to be 
positioned on the green at Chapel Hill/Oak Road Junction would be an ‘eye 
sore’ and harm the amenities of local residents. Officers have carefully 
considered the proposal and overall as indicated above, consider the proposed 
sculptures to be acceptable in design terms. 

5.5 Overall, the proposal is considered to comply with policy CP37 of the adopted 
Local Plan 2031 part 1, Saved Policy DC4 of the adopted Local Plan 2011 and 
Policy DP20 of the emerging Local Plan 2031 part 2. 

5.6 Setting of Listed Buildings
Concerns have been raised by three residents that the proposed Anglo-Saxon 
Cross sculpture on the green at Chapel Hill/Oak Road Junction would harm the 
setting of two grade II listed buildings; 1 and 2 Oak Road. Following these 
concerns, this particular sculpture has been omitted from this current 
application. 

5.7 Residential amenity
Saved policy DC9 of the adopted Local Plan 2011, seeks to prevent 
development that would result in a loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight for 
neighbouring properties or that would cause dominance or visual intrusion for 
neighbouring properties and the wider environment.

5.8 Given the scale and positions of the proposed sculptures, it is not considered 
that the proposed public art would harm the amenities of local residents in 
terms of overshadowing or dominance. 
 

5.9 Traffic, parking and highway safety
As originally submitted, the precise locations of the proposed sculptures were 
unclear, and therefore it was not possible to fully assess whether the sculptures 
would have an impact on highway safety through obstruction of vision splays. 
Detailed block plans of each location have since been submitted, which clearly 
demonstrate the size and location of each sculpture. The highways officer has 
raised no objections to the scheme. 

5.10 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
The proposed public art is not liable for CIL.

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 The proposal has been considered with regards to its impact on the character of 

the area, setting of listed buildings, its impact on the amenity of local residents, 
and its impact on highway safety. The scale, design and locations of the 
proposed sculptures are considered acceptable, and will positively contribute to 
the character of the area. The proposal therefore complies with the provisions of 
the development plan, in particular policies CP37 and CP39 of the adopted Vale 
of White Horse Plan 2031, Part 1 and saved policies DC5, DC9, He4 and NE9 

Page 66



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

of the adopted Vale of White Horse Plan 2011. The works are considered to 
comply with the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework and the 
council’s adopted Design Guide SPD 2015.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies;

CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP39  -  The Historic Environment

Saved Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies;

DC4  -  Public Art
DC5  -  Access
DC9  -  The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
NE9  -  The Lowland Vale
HE4  -  Setting of Listed Buildings

Emerging Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 policies. 
The plan has been through examination and the Inspectors final report is 
currently awaited.

DP16 – Access
DP20 – Public Art
DP23 – Impact of Development on Amenity
DP36 – Heritage Assets

Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular:

- The National Planning Policy Framework (2018) (NPPF)
- The National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG)
- Vale of White Horse Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD) (March 2015)
- Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Other Relevant Legislation and guidance

Human Rights Act 1998
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into
account in the processing of the application and the preparation of this
report.

Equality Act 2010
In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its
equalities obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the
Equality Act 2010.

Author: Sally Appleyard 
Email: sally.appleyard@southandvale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01235 422600

Page 67

mailto:sally.appleyard@southandvale.gov.uk


Appendix 1 of 4

P
age 68



Page 69

SAV_AppleyardS
Typewriter
Appendix 1 (2 of 4)



Page 70

SAV_AppleyardS_1
Typewriter
Appendix 1 (3 of 4)



Page 71

SAV_AppleyardS_2
Typewriter
Appendix 1 (4 of 4)



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

APPLICATION NO. P19/V0258/HH
SITE 85 Netherton Road Appleton Abingdon, 

OX13 5LA
PARISH APPLETON WITH EATON
PROPOSAL Demolish ground rear extensions and 

erect new extended ground rear 
extension.

WARD MEMBER(S) Anthony Hayward
APPLICANT Mr Anthony Hayward
OFFICER Kerry Street

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to the 
following conditions:

Standard conditions:

1.  Commencement within 3 years
2.  Development completed in accordance with approved plans

Compliance condition:

3.  Materials in accordance with application

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is referred to committee as the agent is an elected member.

1.2 The application site, 85 Netherton Road, is a detached property set in a large 
plot within the Oxford Green Belt and the North Vale Corallian Ridge.

1.3 A site location plan is included overleaf.

Page 72

Agenda Item 12

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/V0258/HH


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

1.4

1.5 This application seeks planning permission to demolish the existing rear 
extensions and erect a new, larger ground floor rear extension. Extracts of the 
plans are attached at Appendix 1.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 Appleton With Eaton Parish Council – No objections.

2.2 No neighbour representations have been received. 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 P06/V1214 - Approved (21/09/2006)

Raise walls 1 meter and re-roof to existing building to form a second storey. 
Erection of a conservatory.

P06/V0156 - Approved (14/03/2006)
Re-pitching of roof to form three bedrooms and erection of rear conservatory.

P87/V1395 - Approved (09/04/1987)
Demolition of existing garage and erection of a double garage. Extension and 
alterations to provide lounge, dining room, utility room and toilet. 

3.2 Pre-application History
None

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 Householder development does not fall within the defined scope for potential 

EIA development.

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
5.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following:

 Visual amenity;
 The Oxford Green Belt;

Page 73

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P06/V1214
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P06/V0156
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P87/V1395


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

 Residential amenity;
 Parking and highway safety.

5.2 Visual amenity
The proposed rear extension is single storey in height and will use materials to 
match those of the existing dwelling. As such, it is considered to be subordinate 
in scale and acceptable in design terms. The proposal will not be seen from the 
street scene and it is therefore considered that the works will not have a 
detrimental impact on the character or appearance of the area, or the wider 
landscape of the North Vale Corallian Ridge. 

5.3 The Oxford Green Belt
The property falls within the Oxford Green Belt and therefore consideration 
must be given to Policy CP13 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1, which serves to 
protect the openness of the area. The proposed development would extend 
from the original rear elevation of the dwelling to an approximate total depth of 
5 metres, 1.7 metres further than the existing extensions. Officers are satisfied 
that due to the relatively small scale of the works when compared to the main 
dwelling, that the proposal would not have a detrimental impact and would 
maintain the openness of the Oxford Green Belt. 

5.4 Residential amenity
Due to the relative low height of the proposal, which is a flat roof measuring 2.9 
metres, and given the distance of the proposal to the boundaries of the 
property, it will not cause harm to neighbours through either loss of light, 
dominance or overlooking. 

5.5 Parking and highway safety
The proposal does not increase the number of bedrooms within the property, 
therefore the proposal does not impact on the existing parking provision for the 
dwelling. The proposal does not alter the existing access.

5.6 Community Infrastructure Levy 
The council’s CIL charging schedule was adopted on 1 November 2017. CIL is 
a planning charge that local authorities can implement to help deliver 
infrastructure and to support the development of their area and is primarily 
calculated on the increase in footprint created as a result of the development. 
In this case, the proposal contains less than 100 square metres of extra floor 
space, and therefore the proposal will not be CIL liable.

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 The proposed development will not harm the visual amenity of the area, the 

openness of the Oxford Green Belt, the amenities of neighbouring properties or 
impact highway safety. The proposal therefore complies with the provisions of 
the development plan, in particular policies CP13 and CP37 of the adopted Vale 
of White Horse Local Plan 2031 and policies DC5, DC9 and NE7 of the adopted 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011. The development is also considered to 
comply with the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 74



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 17 April 2019

The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies;

CP13  -  The Oxford Green Belt
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness

Saved Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies;

DC5  -  Access
DC9  -  The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
NE7  -  The North Vale Corallian Ridge

Emerging Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 policies
The plan has been through examination and the Inspectors final report is 
currently awaited.

DP16 – Access
DP23 – Impact of Development on Amenity

Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular:

- The National Planning Policy Framework (2019) (NPPF)
- The National Planning Policy Guidance (March 2014) (NPPG)
- Vale of White Horse Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD) (March 2015)

Other Relevant Legislation and guidance

Human Rights Act 1998
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into
account in the processing of the application and the preparation of this
report.

Equality Act 2010

In determining this planning application, the Council has regard to its
equalities obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the
Equality Act 2010.

Author:         Kerry Street 
Email:           kerry.street@southandvale.gov.uk 
Telephone:   01235 422600

Page 75

mailto:kerry.street@southandvale.gov.uk


Appendix 1

P
age 76



P
age 77


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 P18/V2884/FUL - Premier Inn, Section of A4130 between Milton Interchange and New Farm, Milton, OX14 4TX
	Appendices
	Elevations Existing drwgno PL104
	Sheets and Views
	A1 Layout


	Elevations Proposed drwgno PL107
	Sheets and Views
	XXXX-PL107(A2)


	Floor Plans Existing Sheet 1 of 2 drwgno PL103
	Sheets and Views
	PL03 Sheet 1 of 2


	Floor Plans Existing Sheet 2 of 2 drwgno PL103
	Sheets and Views
	PL03 Sheet 2 of 2


	Floor Plans Proposed  Sheet 1 of 2 drwgno PL106
	Sheets and Views
	PL06 Sheet 1 of 2


	Floor Plans Proposed Sheet 2 of 2 drwgno PL106
	Sheets and Views
	PL06 Sheet 2 of 2


	Site Plan Existing drwgno PL102
	Proposed Reception Elevations drwgno  PL108
	Sheets and Views
	A1 Layout


	Site Plan Proposed drwgno PL105 Rev A


	8 P18/V2931/FUL - Land to the rear of 10 Halls Close, Drayton, OX14 4LU
	9 P18/V2930/HH - 29 Montagu Road, Botley Oxford, OX2 9AQ
	Appendices
	Elevation Plans Proposed and Existing drwgno  138 200
	Floor Plan Existing drwgno 138 101
	Floor Plan Proposed drwgno 138 102
	Site Plan drwgno 138 201A


	10 P18/V2756/FUL - Jigsaw, Coopers Lane, Wantage, OX12 8HQ
	Appendices
	Elevation and Floor Plan Proposed drwgno 1400 02
	Elevations and Floor Plans Garage Proposed drwgo 1400-G-03
	Site Plan Proposed drwgno 1400-S-01 rev A


	11 P18/V2738/FUL - Watchfield, Swindon, SN6
	Appendices
	Sculpture Design Drawing 16 Rev 2
	Appendix 1 (2 of 4) - Proposed Leaf Sculpture
	Appendix 1 (3 of 4) - Proposed Marker Stone
	Appendix 1 (4 of 4) - Proposed Seat


	12 P19/V0258/HH - 85 Netherton Road, Appleton, OX13 5LA
	Appendices
	Elevation and Floor Plan Existing 140 100
	Elevation and Floor Plan Proposed drwgno 140 101





